
ABABABAB    
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 14 JUNE 2012 
3.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meetings Held on: 
 

 

 3.1 19 January 2012 
 

1 - 2 

 3.2 26 January 2012 
 

3 - 4 

 3.3 30 March 2012 
 

5 - 6 

4. Changes to Employee Policies and Procedures 
 

7 - 30 

5. Member Appointments to the Employee Appeals Sub-Committee 
 

31 - 32 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: Fitzgerald (Chairman), Holdich (Vice Chairman), Cereste, Lamb, Khan, Swift and 
Sandford 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: Walsh, Shearman and Fletcher 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Gemma George on telephone 01733 

452268 or by email – gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk 

 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268 as soon as possible. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



   

ABABABAB    
 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Employment Committee  
held at the Town Hall, Peterborough on 19 January 2012 

 
 

Members Present:  Councillors Benton (Chairman), Lamb (Vice Chairman), Swift and Khan 
 
Also Present:  Councillor Scott - Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
 
Officers present:  Malcolm Newsam, Executive Director, Children’s Services 
    Mike Kealey, Acting Head of HR 
    Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Holdich and Councillor Seaton.  

 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3.      Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

              In accordance with Standing Orders, Members agreed that agenda item 4 contained exempt   
information as defined by paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed 
the public interest in disclosing the information, therefore the press and public were excluded 
from the meeting. 

  
4.     Interviews for the Post of Assistant Director – Strategic Commissioning and Prevention 
 
 One candidate was interviewed for the post of Assistant Director – Strategic Commissioning 

and Prevention. 
 
 RESOLVED: to appoint Ms Wendi Ogle-Welbourn, who was currently employed as Director 

of Commissioning Schools, Children and Families, at Essex County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

      Chairman 
                                                                                                                              9.15am to 11.00am 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1



2

This page is intentionally left blank



ABABABAB    
 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Employment Committee  
held at the Town Hall, Peterborough on 26 January 2012 

 
 

Members Present:  Councillors Benton (Chair), Lamb (Vice Chair), Swift, Holdich and Fitzgerald 
 
Also Present:  Councillor Scott - Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
 
Officers present:  Mike Kealey, Acting Head of HR 
    Lisa Trowbridge, Senior HR Advisor Policy Development 
    Amy Brown, Solicitor 
    Karen S Dunleavy, Governance Officer 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
              There were no apologies for absence received.  

 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3 Minutes of the Meetings held on 24 November 2011 and 22 December 2011 
 
3.a Minutes of the Meetings held on 24 November 2011 
 
 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2011 were approved as an accurate and true 
 record. 
 
3.b Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 December 2011 
 
 Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 December 2011 were approved as an accurate and true 
 record. 
 
4.      Changes to Employment Policies and Procedures 
 
 The Committee received a report and presentation from the Senior HR Advisor Policy 
 Development  on a number of employment policies, which had been shared with the 
 Joint Consultative Forum (JCF). 
 
 The report sought the agreement of the Committee to implement the appended employment 
 policies to ensure the council’s policies remained up to date and legal. 
 
 The Employment Committee was requested to agree the following employment policies: 
 

i)  Temporary Workers Policy (Appendix A) and the Use of Fixed Term Workers 
Procedure (Appendix B); and 

ii) Recruitment and Selection Procedure (Appendix C) 
 
       Comments and responses to questions included: 
 

• Members sought clarification over whether an apprenticeship appointment would 
be subject to a redundancy payment if they had been employed for more that two 
years.  Members were advised that temporary contractors would be entitled to a 
redundancy payment if a redundancy process was being followed and had two 
years or more service. 

 

3



• The Acting Head of Human Resources provided clarification over what consultation 
had taken place over the proposed policies the Committee were advised that 
appropriate consultation processes had been followed with Unison, Unite and GMB 
through the formal Joint Consultative Forum (JCF). 

 
 
 RESOLVED: 

  
 The Employment Committee agreed to implement the following policies: 

 
iii) Temporary Workers Policy (Appendix A) and the Use of Fixed Term Workers   
Procedure (Appendix B); and 

iv) Recruitment and Selection Procedure (Appendix C) 
 
 Reasons for the decision: 

  
 The changes to policy and procedures would ensure that the council maintain up to date and 
 legal employment practices which support the Council’s objectives. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

      Chairman 
                                                                                                                            15.00pm to 15.10pm 

 

4



  

ABABABAB    
 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Employment Committee  
held at the Town Hall, Peterborough on 30 March 2012 

 
 

Members Present:  Councillors Fitzgerald (Chairman), Cereste, Swift and Walsh 
 
Officers present:  Gillian Beasley, Chief Executive 

Caroline Parsons, Interim Head of Communications 
    Mike Kealey, Acting Head of HR 
    Lynn Neely, Head of HR 
    Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Lamb (Vice Chairman), Councillor Holdich, 
Councillor Seaton and Councillor Khan. 
 
Councillor Walsh was in attendance as a substitute. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3.      Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

              In accordance with Standing Orders, Members agreed that agenda item 4 contained exempt   
information as defined by paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed 
the public interest in disclosing the information, therefore the press and public were excluded 
from the meeting. 

  
4.   Interviews for the Post of Head of Strategic Communications  
 
 Two candidates were interviewed for the post of Head of Strategic Communications. 
 
 RESOLVED: to appoint Ms Claire Hughes, who was most recently employed as Head of 

Communications at Bedfordshire Police.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

      Chairman 
                                                                                                                              9.15am to 1.30pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



FV1 310512 
 

 

 
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

14 June 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Gr Uff Marco Cereste – Leader of the Council 
and Cabinet Member for Growth, Strategic Planning, 
Economic Development, Business Engagement and 
Environmental Capital 

Councillor Irene Walsh – Cabinet Member for Community 
Cohesion and Safety 

Contact Officer(s): Mike Kealey -  Acting Head of Human Resources 

 

Tel.  (01733) 384500 

        

 

CHANGES TO EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Trade Union Representatives Deadline date : N.A. 

 
It is recommended that Employment Committee agrees to implement the following employment 
policy and procedures: 
 

i)  Youth Worker grades and responsibilities (Appendix 1) 
ii) Revision to the Self Disclosure Policy (Appendix 2) 
iii) Revision to the Training & Development Policy (Appendix 3) 

 
 

 
 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to the Employment Committee following a referral from the Joint 
Consultative Forum on 31st May 2012.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to ensure that the council maintains up to date and legal 
employment policies. 

 
2.2 This report is for the Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 2.3.1.2 

‘to determine employee procedures, including dismissal procedures’ and 2.3.1.4 ‘to 
determine local terms and conditions of employment for employees’.  

 
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 

7



FV1 310512 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

Youth Work Grade Matrix 
 

The current youth work grade matrix was developed for youth and community workers in 
2005, following new national guidance on salary structures issued by the Joint Negotiating 
Committee for Youth and Community Work (ref Joint Education Services Circulars No 
133,135 and 136).  Significant changes in service structures and senior managers since 
then mean that there is no record of the consultation process around this.  Service 
managers have identified a number of situations where interpretation and application of the 
matrix has not been consistent and that the career grade structure needs to be much 
clearer and more transparent to ensure fair and consistent decision making for any new 
staff appointed and for those staff who gain qualifications or take on additional 
responsibilities.   

 
The draft (Appendix 1) for consideration aims to give clear, transparent criteria based on 
the key principles of the original guidance.   
 
Self Disclosure Policy 
 

This policy has been slightly amended to ensure employees are clear on their responsibility 
to report as soon as is reasonably practicable to their manager any relevant changes of 
personal circumstance.  Disclosures include any criminal investigations, convictions or 
warnings they may become the subject of, or any other relevant information which a 
reasonable employer might consider could impact on their employment.  The draft is 
attached at appendix two. 

 
Training & Development Policy 
 
This policy has been brought up to date with the overall aim of ensuring that employees, 
and managers fully understand their responsibilities to ensure that training and 
development is aligned to and primarily focused on supporting the achievement of the 
council’s strategic priorities.  The draft is attached at appendix three. 
 

 
5. CONSULTATION 
 

The joint Trade Unions have been consulted on the youth work grade matrix, the Training & 
Development Policy, and the slight amendment to the Self Disclosure Policy.  These were 
agreed at the meeting of the Joint Consultative Forum on 31st May 2012.   
 

 
6.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
 The above proposed changes to youth work grade matrix and responsibilities will ensure 

fair and consistent decision making.  
 
  Once approved by Employment Committee the youth work grade matrix and 

responsibilities will be communicated to affected staff. 
 
 The youth work grade matrix will be implemented after the date of this Employment 

Committee.  The council are not looking to apply any changes to the youth work grade 
matrix retrospectively.   

8



FV1 310512 
 

 
  
 
7.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 These proposed changes to the youth work grade matrix and responsibilities will help to 

ensure fair and consistent decision making.  
 
 
8.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

The policies were considered against (a) those published by some other local government 
employers, (b) template policies from legal bodies plus (c) the existing policy, to ensure it 
was a sensible, fair approach which took account of current legislation.    

 
9.  IMPLICATIONS 
 

The youth work grade matrix and responsibilities will be reviewed on an ongoing basis and 
will be amended from time to time to ensure legal compliance.  The financial implications to 
introducing the amended youth work grade matrix are minimal. 

 
10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None. 
 

11.  APPENDICES 
 

• Appendix 1 - Youth Worker grades and responsibilities  

• Appendix 2 - Revision to the Self Disclosure Policy  

• Appendix 3 - Revision to the Training & Development Policy  
 

 
  

 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



F
in

a
l 

d
ra

ft
 2

0
/0

3
/1

2
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 

P
C

C
’s

 8
-1

9
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

Y
o

u
th

 W
o

rk
 g

ra
d

e
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

–
 f

in
a

l 
d

ra
ft

 
 P

le
a

se
 n

o
te

: 
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 e

xi
st

in
g

 s
ta

ff
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
a

ll
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 (

q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
s,

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s 
a

n
d

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
) 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 o

r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
in

im
u

m
 p

a
y
 p

o
in

t.
 

Y
o

u
th

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 W
o

rk
e

r 
ro

le
s 

P
a

y
 p

o
in

ts
 

Q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
s 

S
co

p
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

ce
  

1
-2

 
N

o
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
ly

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 s

ta
ff

. 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
o

le
 i

n
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 t

e
a

m
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 d
ir

e
ct

io
n

 o
f 

a
 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
e

r 
o

r 
le

a
d

 w
o

rk
e

r.
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

u
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

Le
ss

 t
h

a
n

 6
 m

o
n

th
s 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 

 

3
-4

 
R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

Le
v
e

l 
1

 q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

, 
e

.g
. 

Le
v
e

l 

2
 A

w
a

rd
 i
n

 Y
o

u
th

 W
o

rk
 P

ra
ct

ic
e

, 
 E

n
tr

y
 

le
v
e

l 
in

 Y
o

u
th

 W
o

rk
 o

r 
re

co
g

n
is

e
d

 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
o

le
 i

n
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 t

e
a

m
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 d
ir

e
ct

io
n

 o
f 

a
 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
e

r 
o

r 
le

a
d

 w
o

rk
e

r.
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

jo
b

 r
o

le
. 

A
t 

le
a

st
 1

 y
e

a
r’

s 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 

(m
in

im
u

m
 1

2
0

 h
o

u
rs

) 
o

f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

in
 a

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 

se
tt

in
g

 

 

5
-8

 
R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

Le
v
e

l 
2

 q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

, 
e

.g
. 

Le
v
e

l 

2
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 i
n

 Y
o

u
th

 W
o

rk
 P

ra
ct

ic
e

, 

N
V

Q
/V

R
Q

 2
 i

n
 Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

 o
r 

re
co

g
n

is
e

d
 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
o

le
 i

n
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 

W
o

rk
in

g
 u

n
d

e
r 

d
ir

e
ct

io
n

 b
u

t 
w

it
h

 s
co

p
e

 f
o

r 
u

si
n

g
 

in
it

ia
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
. 

  

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
ta

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
d

 o
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
a

sp
e

ct
s 

o
f 

a
 

p
ro

je
ct

 o
r 

o
n

 o
cc

a
si

o
n

s 
ta

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
d

 r
o

le
 i
n

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 

e
.g

. 
to

 c
o

v
e

r 
si

ck
n

e
ss

. 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

A
t 

le
a

st
 2

 y
e

a
rs

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 

(m
in

im
u

m
 2

4
0

 h
o

u
rs

) 
o

f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

in
 a

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 

se
tt

in
g

. 

 

9
-1

2
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

Le
v
e

l 
2

 q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

, 
e

.g
. 

Le
v
e

l 

2
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 i
n

 Y
o

u
th

 W
o

rk
 P

ra
ct

ic
e

, 

N
V

Q
/V

R
Q

 2
 i

n
 Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

 o
r 

re
co

g
n

is
e

d
 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t.

 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

le
v
e

l 
3

 q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 (
w

h
e

re
 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

/a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 e
.g

. 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

T
a

k
in

g
 a

 l
e

a
d

 r
o

le
 i

n
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
je

ct
/s

 o
n

 a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
o

r 
lo

n
g

 

te
rm

 b
a

si
s 

e
.g

. 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
e

r 
is

 

a
b

se
n

t 
o

r 
a

 p
o

st
 i

s 
v
a

ca
n

t.
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
su

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

st
a

ff
. 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

o
v
e

rs
e

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

co
rd

in
g

 

re
g

u
la

r 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 w

it
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 y

o
u

th
 

A
t 

le
a

st
 3

 y
e

a
rs

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 

(m
in

im
u

m
 3

6
0

 h
o

u
rs

) 
o

f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

in
 a

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 

se
tt

in
g

. 

 

11



F
in

a
l 

d
ra

ft
 2

0
/0

3
/1

2
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
io

n
 t

o
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 

ro
le

 

w
o

rk
e

r/
lo

ca
li

ty
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r.

 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
e

r 
ro

le
s 

- 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 B

a
se

d
 Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

e
r 

 a
n

d
 C

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 S
p

e
ci

a
li

st
 Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

e
r 

 

P
a

y
 p

o
in

ts
 

Q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
s 

S
co

p
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

ce
 

1
3

-1
4

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

b
il
it

y
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 J

N
C

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
t 

N
V

Q
 4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

. 

 

N
e

w
ly

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 s

ta
ff

; 
th

o
se

 p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

JN
C

 

q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s;
 t

h
o

se
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
JN

C
 q

u
a

li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s.
 

A
ft

e
r 

in
it

ia
l 
in

d
u

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

le
a

d
in

g
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

o
r 

cl
u

b
s 

w
it

h
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
ce

 f
ro

m
 l

in
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 

a
n

d
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

d
 c

o
ll

e
a

g
u

e
s.

 

W
it

h
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

d
a

y
 t

o
 

d
a

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
th

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 a

n
d

/o
r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 (

w
h

e
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 r

o
le

).
 

A
t 

le
a

st
 1

 y
e

a
r’

s 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 (
fu

ll
 

ti
m

e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 

g
ro

u
p

s 
a

n
d

 o
n

e
 t

o
 o

n
e

. 

 

1
5

-1
8

 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
JN

C
 Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

 

q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 (
o

r 
re

co
g

n
is

e
d

 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
le

a
d

in
g

 y
o

u
th

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
o

r 
cl

u
b

s.
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
d

a
y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
th

 

su
p

p
o

rt
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
/o

r 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 (

w
h

e
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 r

o
le

).
 

C
o

m
p

e
te

n
cy

 i
n

 r
o

le
 d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
d

 b
y 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
l P

D
R

s 
a

n
d

 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
o

b
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
s.

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
co

ll
e

a
g

u
e

s 
to

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 r

o
le

 e
.g

. 
th

ro
u

g
h

 m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
 

n
e

w
 s

ta
ff

. 

A
t 

le
a

st
 2

 y
e

a
rs

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 (

fu
ll

 

ti
m

e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 a
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 r

o
le

. 
 

 

1
9

-2
2

 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
JN

C
 Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

 

q
u

a
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 (
o

r 
re

co
g

n
is

e
d

 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
fu

ll
 d

u
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 f
o

r 
p

o
in

ts
 

1
5

-1
8

. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 f

u
ll

 d
u

ti
e

s,
 t

a
k
e

s 
o

n
 s

u
b

st
a

n
ti

a
l 
a

n
d

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
y
 f

o
r 

sp
e

ci
a

li
st

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

/p
o

li
cy

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 o

r 
se

rv
ic

e
, 

e
.g

. 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

ci
ty

 w
id

e
 y

o
u

th
 t

h
e

m
e

s/
p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
h

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s,
 d

e
li

v
e

ri
n

g
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
n

 s
p

e
ci

a
li

st
 a

re
a

s 
to

 

co
ll

e
a

g
u

e
s;

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

su
p

e
rv

is
o

ry
/c

o
a

ch
in

g
 r

o
le

 w
it

h
 c

o
ll

e
a

g
u

e
s 

ta
k
in

g
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
q

u
a

li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s 

A
t 

le
a

st
 3

 y
e

a
rs

 p
o

st
 q

u
a

li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 i

n
 a

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

y
o

u
th

 

w
o

rk
 r

o
le

. 

  

 

12



V2 080511 
Page 1 of 1 

 
         APPENDIX 2 
 
 
 
 

 
SELF DISCLOSURE POLICY  
1. Purpose of the Policy 
 

Peterborough City Council has a duty of care to protect the well being of the public 
and service users and in particular children and vulnerable adults in its care who are 
considered to be especially vulnerable or at risk. Pre employment checks and other 
safe employment practices are a requirement to ensure that people who may pose a 
threat to children and vulnerable adults are not given positions of trust where they 
could exploit those entrusted to their care.   
 

2. Principles 

• Where a post is covered by the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 
(Exceptions) Order 1975 (for example, posts involving work with children or 
vulnerable adults) both spent and unspent convictions must be declared on 
application forms.   

• Failure to disclose convictions on application forms and/or with the line 
manager may result in disciplinary action.   

• Following appointment, employees have a responsibility to report as soon as 
is reasonably practicable any relevant changes of circumstance to their 
employer.  These include any criminal investigations, convictions or warnings 
they may become the subject of, or any other relevant information which a 
reasonable employer might consider to impact on their employment 

• Any existing employee may be asked to undertake a CRB re-check in line 
with council policy.  Refusing to comply with such a request may result in the 
employee being subject to formal disciplinary action for ‘deliberate and/or 
unreasonable refusal to carry out lawful and safe instructions issued by an 
appropriate manager/supervisor, and/or to comply with a contractual 
agreement.  

• Confidentiality cannot be guaranteed where concerns arise about the welfare 
or safety of children or vulnerable adults but any information sharing will be in 
accordance with relevant legislation and policy and only as is necessary in 
the circumstances. 

• Employees should always discuss with their line manager any difficulties or 
problems, as soon as is reasonably practicable, that may impact on their 
suitability to work with children and vulnerable adults, so that appropriate 
support can be provided or action taken. 

 
 
 
 

 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

        APPENDIX 3 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT POLICY 
Draft 16/04/12 Version 10 
 

 
 
 

1. Purpose of the Policy 
 

Peterborough City Council recognises that effective training and development offers 
benefits to the individual, the organisation and the community as a whole.   

Training and development within the council will make an impact by: 

• Improving performance by developing knowledge, skills, behaviours and 
capability amongst employees so that they are motivated, can respond positively 
to change, perform effectively and efficiently to deliver current services and meet 
future demands. 

• Enabling the deployment, development, progression and retention of talented 
employees with the potential to contribute to the achievement of the council’s 
strategic priorities, business objectives and values. 

 
This policy together with Learning Contract and its guidelines   X:\Corporate 
Training\Shared\Learner Contracts\Learner Contract Docs allows  for decisions to be 
made on the development of individuals and groups of employees and provides 
continuing support 
 
 
2. Scope 
 
2.1 This policy will be applied consistently across the council to all its employees. 
 
2.2 Any external consultants or third party suppliers providing training and 

development services, must act in accordance with this policy. The 
appropriate training or workforce development team is responsible for 
providing such parties with this policy prior to their engagement. 

 
2.3 Consultants, interims, agency, relief/casual and fixed term workers on 

contracts that are three months or less should be provided with training to 
ensure mandatory requirements are met (e.g. health and safety, data 
protection etc.).  Induction training (local, departmental or corporate) will also 
be provided only to enable them to perform their role effectively. 

 

 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

 

15



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
3. Key  Principles 

 

All training and development will be aligned to and primarily focused on 
supporting the achievement of the council’s strategic priorities.  

 

o All training and development will be based on identified development needs 
and how these should be met. Development needs will be discussed as part 
of the annual performance development review (PDR) and thereafter within 
1:1s/supervision meetings.  

o Where possible, reasonable time and financial support will be agreed by line 
managers for employees to study for relevant professional qualifications that 
are appropriate to their role, that will support their future employability and 
meet the needs and priorities of the council. Where such support is provided 
all employees will be required to sign a learning contract which will set out the 
details of the support provided and the circumstances where the employee 
will be required to repay the costs involved. 

o The council is committed to achieving and maintaining the standards of 
Investors in People (IiP), and the Peterborough Skills Vision – 
http://www.opportunitypeterborough.co.uk/work/skills-vision/  demonstrating 
that it recognises the importance of training, learning and development so that 
everyone is able to contribute their best in delivering quality services to the 
community and enable the council to achieve its priorities and objectives. 

o The council is committed, through its PDR process, to the creation of training 
and development opportunities for all staff and will work to ensure equality of 
opportunity/open accessibility for all employees. 

o All employees are entitled to receive an induction into their job, their team and 
the organisation X:\Corporate Training\Shared\Local Induction\Local Induction 
Checklist.doc. Managers are expected to ensure this occurs. 

o The council will work in partnership with its trade unions consulting on how 
training needs are identified and provided for. 

o All employees have a right to request training in accordance with employment 
legislation. 

o The value, benefits and impact of all training provision and activities will be 
evaluated; these will be assessed from an individual level, team/directorate 
level and an organisational level and the results reported. Comparisons will 
also be made with external standards of best practice and performance with 
compatible organisations.  

16



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
Responsibilities 
 
3.1  Employees: 
 

Training and development is most effective when individuals take 
responsibility for their own learning.  Employees are expected to take 
ownership and responsibility for their personal development in relation to their 
work. This includes analysing their skills, aptitudes and potential development 
needs, as well as having a positive attitude and proactive approach to 
development.  

The council believes that training and development is a continuous process. There is 
an expectation that staff will practise continuous professional development within 
their area of expertise and be open to opportunities for self development. The PDR 
system allows for individuals to make suggestions for development at least annually. 
Employees also have the legal right to request training and development. 

Employees are expected to:- 

Ø take an active role in planning and achieving their own personal development, 
including undertaking self development and any agreed development 
activities; 

Ø identify their needs and carefully assess a range of training, learning and 
development options before those choices are discussed and agreed with 
their managers; 

Ø attend, contribute to and agree timely PDRs  
Ø share knowledge and skills acquired with their colleagues; 
Ø apply the learning and assess its impact on their skills & performance; 

evaluate with their manager all training and development activities they have 
undertaken; 

Ø source and book training courses once approved, using the Learning Site and 
Core Programme 

Ø attend booked training courses; failure to give adequate notice if they cannot 
attend or a cancellation within 10 days of the course will result in a charge 
being applied.  

 
3.2 Line managers 
 

Line managers are responsible for implementing this policy and ensuring that 
the training and development needs of their employees both individually and 
as a group, are identified and that these are appropriately addressed. 

Line managers are responsible for providing support and guidance in relation to the 
training and development of those reporting to them, particularly identifying 
development needs and making sure that appropriate solutions are determined, 
implemented and evaluated. 

Advice and information for managers is available on The Learning Site - 
http://insite/Information%20Library2/InfoLibraryPages/AreaDetails.aspx?AreaID=6 

Line managers are expected to: 

17



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

Ø set objectives for both performance and for training, learning and development 
to meet business needs at individual, departmental and directorate levels 

Ø conduct appropriate PDRs, 1:1s and supervision meetings to support 
achievement of these objectives, and to include proposed solutions in the 
departmental training plans 

Ø encourage and support employees involvement in a range of learning and 
development activities; where possible create opportunities that are not 
training courses including self development, e learning, coaching, 
secondments, on the job learning 

Ø provide guidance to employees on the skills and knowledge required for their 
current role; facilitate the induction of all new employees to the council by 
providing the training and development they need to do their job 

Ø provide suitable opportunities for employees to apply newly acquired skills and 
knowledge; give individuals and teams regular feedback on their performance 
to actively identify future learning and development needs 

Ø ensure that any training, learning and development being planned by a 
member of their team represents good value for money and fits with 
organisational priorities, procedures and policies 

Ø evaluate and report the impact and benefits of all learning and development 
activities undertaken by members of their teams 

Ø ensure they have the skills, capabilities and knowledge to undertake the 
above 

 
3.3 Senior management 

 

Senior management is responsible for actively encouraging training, learning 
and development to enable the council to meet its business objectives and for 
ensuring that resources are made available for this purpose. 

 
Senior managers are expected to: 
 

Ø demonstrate continued commitment to both the councils IiP accreditation and 
the Peterborough Skills Vision, showing that all learning is valued 

Ø encourage line managers to effectively use a range of learning opportunities 
and methods including secondment and acting up opportunities where 
appropriate and to help employees to meet the constant changes facing the 
organisation 

Ø determine and agree the key training priorities that will assist the organisation 
and their department meet its business objectives 

Ø champion and ensure the use of the performance management processes to 
enable managers to discuss training, learning and development needs 

Ø consult with trade unions on appropriate training and development issues 
Ø identify and make resources/budget available 
Ø review the impact, benefits and contribution of training and development in 

meeting business objectives, priorities and performance 
Ø approve requests for support under the Learner contract 

 
3.4 The role of HR Business Partners 
 

The HR Business Partners are responsible for offering information, advice and 
support to senior managers/HOS in their roles as described above.  

 

18



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 HR Business Partners are expected to: 
 
Ø ensure that all training and development activity taking place within their 

business areas is in line with and supports this policy and complies with 
corporate standards and processes for undertaking training and development 

Ø provide advice to line managers and employees on how to implement training 
policies and processes; and information on training and learning options and 
methods 

Ø oversee the Learner Contract guidelines covering funding and study leave etc 
and ensure they are implemented in a fair and equitable manner 

 
3.5 The HR Training & Development team 
 

The Training and Development team will work with the leadership, 
management, trade union representatives and employees to ensure that the 
council has the skilled and competent workforce to deliver its strategic 
priorities and quality services. 

 
The team is expected to: 
 

Ø review regularly the corporate Training and Development Strategy to reflect 
changing business, organisational or service requirements 

Ø collate information on core generic training needs (e.g. leadership, 
management development, business admin skills, personal 
effectiveness/skills, communication skills, ICT); and to plan training provision, 
resource/budget accordingly 

Ø design and deliver training and development activities that are agreed to be 
organised centrally 

Ø source, commission and performance manage external suppliers 
Ø develop and maintain training policies, standards, systems and processes and 

ensure these are applied consistently 
Ø evaluate the overall effectiveness of training and development activities; report 

on their impact, value-for-money and benefits 
Ø provide and maintain key tools to support development (e.g. the PDR process, 

ResourceLink, training materials, guides, e learning) 
Ø provide advice, guidance and support on training and development matters 
Ø lead the council’s efforts to maintain its IiP accreditation 
Ø consult with trade unions on appropriate learning and development issues 

  

3.6 The departmental training or workforce development teams 
 

The departmental training teams are responsible for identifying departmental 
related specific, functional or professional training solutions and managing the 
departmental training plan.  

 
These training/workforce development teams are expected to: 
 

Ø gather information in a coordinated manner to identify departmental functional, 
technical or professional specific training needs, develop departmental training 
strategies aligned to corporate strategy, and plan training provision, resources 
and manage budget accordingly 

Ø provide advice, guidance and support on training and development matters; 
Ø support the council’s efforts to maintain its IiP accreditation 

19



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

Ø source, commission and performance manage external suppliers to develop 
and/or deliver learning solutions 

Ø coordinate and manage the design and delivery of training, learning and 
development activities that are agreed to be organised by directorates 

Ø evaluate the overall effectiveness learning and development activities; report 
on impact and benefits of training and development; as well as efficiency of 
their training function 

 
 

 
3.7 Learning and development budget and procurement of suppliers 
 

Ø Each directorate will have its own training budget. It is the responsibility of 
each budget holder to ensure that the budget is managed with a consequent 
prioritisation (what does this mean?)of the training and development needs 
identified.  

 
Ø Procurement of any externally provided activity must follow council 

procurement rules and where applicable use only agreed suppliers. Advice on 
suppliers can be sought from the HR Training and Development team.  

 
4. References for further information 
 
To carry out the intent of this policy you will need to refer to:  
 
Internal policies and procedures 
o PDR Process and Guidelines 
o Induction Policy and Procedure 
o Capability Policy 
o Learner Contract and Guidelines 
o Secondment Procedure 
o Acting up Procedure 
 
Training 

• Managing your Teams Development – e learning and workshop 

• The Learning Site 
 
5. Further Advice 
 
Advice and support is available from your HR Business Partner or HR Training and 
Development. 
 
 
6. Authorisation and review 
 
This policy has been authorised by: 
 
     
Head of Human Resources    
 
Next review date:  xxxx 
 

20



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
      
 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on the           day of                         20        

BETWEEN: 

(1) Peterborough City Council, [address] (the “Council”); and 

(2) [Employee Name], [Employee Number] (the “Employee”).  

The Council has agreed to provide the financial support set out in Schedule 1 (the 
“Support”) to the Employee for the training, development and education described in 
Schedule 2 (the “Training”) on the terms of this Agreement. 
 
1. Employee’s Obligations: 
 
1.1 The Employee hereby undertakes to: 
 
1.1.1.  work hard to achieve an acceptable standard in the Training whilst not 

allowing job performance to suffer; 
 
1.1.2 provide copies of and review with the Council any assignment assessments, 

progress reports and examination results at each stage of the Training; 
 
1.1.3 authorise disclosure of the information referred to in clause 1.1.2 if such 

authorisation is required by the Training provider; 
 
1.1.4 not reveal any information which may damage the Council’s reputation or 

which may breach any duties of confidentiality which the Council may have; 
 
1.1.5 not refer to cases or inquiries under investigation by the Council or not yet 

published by the Council. 
 
2. Employee’s Understanding 
 
2.1 The Employee hereby acknowledges and confirms his/her understanding 

that: 
 
2.1.1 the award of the Support to the Employee does not mean that the Council can 

or will guarantee that a particular position or title at the Council will be 
available to the Employee on completion of the Training; 

 
2.1.2 the Council has agreed to provide the Support because it wishes to improve 

the skills and knowledge of the Employee and to secure the benefit of this 
improvement for the Council through the employment of the Employee 
following completion of the Training; and 

 
2.1.3 the Employee will be required to repay the Support in the circumstances set 

out in clause 3.1. 
 

21



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
 
 
2.2 The Employee further confirms that he/she: 
 
2.2.1 has read and understood the Council’s guidelines on learning and training 

which are attached at Schedule 3; and 
 
2.2.2 has been given at least 5 days to read and understand the terms of this 

Agreement. 
 
3 Repayment 
 

This is a very important part of the Agreement and the Employee 
should read the following clauses carefully. 

 
3.1 The Employee will be required to repay the Support in full if the 

Employee: 
 
3.1.1 does not complete the Training to the satisfaction of the Council; 
 
3.1.2 damages the reputation of the Council by his/her behaviour while 

attending Training; 
 
3.1.3 leaves the employment of the Council voluntarily or for misconduct 

reasons before completing the Training; 
 
3.1.4 leaves the employment of the Council for misconduct reasons within 

two years of completing the Training; or 
 
3.1.5 leaves the employment of the Council voluntarily to take up a position 

outside local government within two years of completing the Training. 
 
3.2 If the Employee is required to repay any or all of the Support to the Council 

the Council shall be entitled to: 
 
3.2.1 deduct such repayment from the Employee’s salary in one instalment; 
 
3.2.2 agree a repayment schedule with the Employee whereby the repayment shall 

be made by a series of deductions from the Employee’s salary payments; or 
 
3.2.3 agree a repayment schedule with the Employee whereby the repayment shall 

be repaid by direct debit or standing order from the Employee’s bank or 
building society account; 

 
3.3 The Council will endeavour to agree a repayment method and schedule with 

the Employee but the Council has complete discretion as to the choice of 
repayment method and the timing of any repayment.  

 
3.4 The Council may take whatever legal action it deems necessary to recover 

the Support. 
 
 

22



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Employee Signature: 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………    ……………………………………. 
 
Name       Signature 
 
………………………………… 
 
Date 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of Peterborough City Council: 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………    ……………………………………. 
 
Name       Signature 
 
 
 
………………………………… 
 
 
Position 
 
 
………………………………… 
 
Date 
 
 
 
 
ONCE SIGNED BY EMPLOYEE AND MANAGER, SEND ORIGINAL COMPLETE 
FORM TO TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT TEAM, HUMAN RESOURCES, 
MIDGATE HOUSE, PE1 1TN. 
 
COPY TO BE RETAINED BY EMPLOYEE AND MANAGER 
 

23



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SCHEDULE 1 
 
FINANCIAL SUPPORT 
 

The Employee will receive the following financial support: 
 

Element Total value of support  

Fees 
 

 

Travel expenses 
 

 

Examination/membership/ 
registration fees  

 

Books/study materials  
 

 

Study leave 
 

 

Examination leave  
 

Other expenses  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SCHEDULE 2 
 
TRAINING, DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATION 
 
 
Please enter details of the course of study, learning or development, provider, 
institution, location, duration, expected qualification etc. 
 
In addition provide details of the support, encouragement and assistance to be 
provided by the employee’s manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SCHEDULE 3 
 
LEARNING CONTRACT GUIDELINES 
 

26



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

LEARNING CONTRACT GUIDELINES 
 

1. Statement  
 
1.1The Council is committed to actively encouraging and supporting its employees to 
gain the development, skills and qualifications that will support their future 
employability and meet the needs and priorities of the Council. 
 
1.2 The Council requires all employees to formally request support for learning and to 
enter into a learning contract for any agreed course of study or learning. 
 
1.3 For any agreed course of study activity that lasts more than 12 months and 
where there is a financial implication across more than one financial year, the 
decision to continue to support the course / learning activity will be made on an 
annual basis. The Council will try to support employees throughout the course of 
study but this cannot be guaranteed.  
 
2. Equal opportunities  
 
2.1 The Council is an equal opportunity employer. It aims to implement and monitor 
employee development practices to ensure that no employee is treated less 
favourably on the grounds of sex, race, disability, ethnic origin, marital status, age, 
religion, sexual orientation or hours worked and that access to learning is for all 
employees according to need and priorities. 
 
3. Criteria for Approval.  
 
3.1 Approval of support for learning will be based therefore on the following criteria: 
 

§ The learning need is identified in departmental business or service plans as a 
requirement to achieve the Council’s priorities or business objectives.  

§ The learning need is identified in the employee’s performance and 
development review to improve performance.  

§ There is budget provision available and no detrimental impact upon service 
delivery. 

§ The learning need meets the requirement’s of the employee’s role and/or the 
relevant professional body and its standards. 

 
3.2 If any one of these criteria is not met the line manager must be able to justify the 
requirement to reallocate budget resources on the basis of: 
 

§ New legislation affecting the service that had not been foreseen. 
§ Improving service performance as a matter of urgency. 
§ Reallocation of work to accommodate maternity or other long-term sickness 

absence. 
 
4. Study Leave  
 
4.1 Once support for learning has been agreed, the Council will allow the employee 
to attend the course on a day release / half day release / block release basis as 
specified in the course programme. This decision must be agreed between the 
employee’s manager and the employee and must balance the course requirements 
and the agreed level of service delivery. 

27



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
 
4.2 The employee must attend work as normal on days when he/she is not required 
to attend the course.  
 
4.3 If the course is by distance learning the employee will be entitled to study leave 
on a basis equivalent to half a day per week i.e. 3½ hours leave. This study leave 
should be used to accommodate tutorials if applicable as well as personal study.  
 
4.4 These arrangements include additionally time off to sit examinations. 
 
5. Examination revision leave  
 
5.1 Leave to allow revision for examinations will be granted on the basis of half a 
day’s leave i.e. 3½ hours per examination. 
 
5.2 The scheduling of this leave must be agreed in advance with the employee’s 
manager.  
 
5.3 Employees who do not work 37 hours per week or who are required to work 
flexibly within an annualised hours agreement will be given the same level of support 
as someone working 37 hours per week, tailored to their normal work patterns.  
 
6. Authorisation process 
 
6.1 All employees who wish to undertake a course which requires financial support 
must submit a request in writing to their line manager, stating: 

• how it will benefit them, their department and the Council; and 

• demonstrating they have the capability to undertake the course and the 
commitment to complete it successfully. 

 
6.2 Those employees who have already received financial support previously will 
have a lower priority. 
 
6.3 If approved, managers will confirm this to the employee who will be asked to sign 
the learning contract that specifies the support made to the employee, the 
expectations the Council has of the employee and repayment arrangements. 
 
7. Financial Support for budgeted activities 
 
7.1 Managers will determine the specific level of financial support that can be 
provided for each applicant, but overall the Council recommends the following: 
 

§ Tuition fees – 100% 
§ Registration &  professional body membership fees 100% 
§ Examination fees  (first attempt) 100% 
§ Travel expenses – see below 
§ Subsistence – refer to existing policy 
§ Books – discretionary 
§ Tools and equipment - discretionary 

 
7.2 Public transport should be used where possible and reimbursement will be for 
second-class rail travel &/or bus fares.  

28



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

 
7.3 Prior approval must be obtained for alternative travel arrangements (for example 
own car or shared car), whether they are temporary or permanent arrangements.  If 
an employee can attend the course by public transport but prefers to use their own 
car, they will only receive travel expenses up to the public transport equivalent.  
 
7.4 There is no automatic right to use a pool car, even when an employee has the 
dedicated use of a pool car for work.  
 
7.5 The Council expects employees to make full use of library services and the 
Internet. 
 
7.6 Employees are expected to check whether requirements for tools  or equipment 
can be met in house within existing equipment  and resources.  
If this is not possible special approval for such expenditure (within budget) must be 
made to their manager. Any such tools / equipment will remain the property of the 
Council.  
 
 
8. Financial Support for non-budgeted activities 
 
8.1 If the requested course has not been anticipated and there are no available funds 
the request for support may be turned down for the current financial year.  
However, the request may be carried forward and reconsidered in the next financial 
year.  
 
8.2 If there are limited funds available in the budget the employee may receive only a 
proportion of the costs of the course and must therefore contribute the difference 
personally if they wish to proceed in the current year.  
 
8.3 An agreement with each employee will be made according to their 
circumstances. 
 
 
9. Calculation of Financial Assistance  
 
9.1 In the calculation of the financial support made to an employee, tuition fees, 
examination fees, membership fees, registration fees, exemption fees and public 
transport travel costs will be included. Salary and related employment costs will not 
be included. 
 
10. Withdrawal of Financial support 
 
10.1 The decision to support learning will be reviewed each financial year. 
 
11. Repayment 
 
11.1 The Council reserves the right to demand repayment of any financial support 
given to the employee in certain circumstances and subject to time limits which will 
be advised to the employee at the time, for example, if the employee leaves the 
employment of the Council within 2 years of completing the course or does not 
complete the course.  
 

29



Training and Development Policy & 
supporting documents 
Effective: XXXX 
Published: XXXX 

 

 

11.2 If the employee terminates his/her employment or fails to complete the course 
on the grounds of ill health, maternity or disability (within the meaning of the Disability 
Discrimination Act), the Council  would not require repayment of the financial support 
but may require the employee to rearrange or defer completion of the course where 
possible. 
11.3 Where an employee is made redundant ( Compulsory and Voluntarily) the 
Council would not require repayment of the financial support. 
 

 
12. Knowledge sharing  
 
12.1 Sharing learning is a key part of the learning process. It is a requirement 
therefore that the employee considers how they can share learning with colleagues 
where relevant. This should include the sharing of course work and of dissertations.  
 
13. Employee Obligations 
 
13.1 The employee is expected to make a reasonable effort to achieve the required 
standard on the course. 
 
13.2 The employee must take care that in the course of his/her studies he/she does 
not reveal any information that could be damaging to the Council’s reputation, or 
disclose any confidential information.  Current cases under investigation or not yet 
published information should never be referred to in course work.  
 
13.3 Information in the public domain can be used in course work  
 
13.4 The employee must ensure that the Council is given information about his/her 
progress/ assessments/ learning performance and should authorise such disclosure 
from the learning provider if required. 
 
13.5 The employee must complete any monitoring and evaluation activities 
throughout the duration of the course as required. 
 
14. Managers Obligations 
 
14.1 Managers are expected to discuss with the employee, agree and provide the 
level and type of support, assistance, opportunities and advice they require to 
successfully complete the course of study and to apply that learning in the workplace.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 

 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

14 JUNE 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Gr Uff Marco Cereste – Leader of the Council 
and Cabinet Member for Growth, Strategic Planning and 
Economic Development 

Contact Officer(s): Helen Edwards – Solicitor to the Council 

Gemma George – Senior Governance Officer 

 

Tel.  (01733) 452539 

Tel.  (01733) 452268 

 
MEMBER APPOINMENTS TO THE EMPLOYEE APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Solicitor to the Council Deadline date : N.A. 

 
That the Employment Committee appoints three Members to the Employee Appeals Sub-
Committee, these appointments to be in accordance with the political balance arrangements of 
the Council.  
 
 
 

 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 

1.1 This report is submitted to the Employment Committee following the approval of the revised 
Committee structure at the Annual Council meeting held on 23 May 2012.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to appoint three Members to the Employee Appeals Sub-
Committee in accordance with the political balance arrangements of the Council. 

 
2.2 This report is for the Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 2.3.1.2 ‘to 

determine employee procedures, including dismissal procedures’ and 2.3.2 ‘to hear and 
determine all employee appeals arising from agreed employee policies and procedures’.  

 

3. TIMESCALE  

 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 At the meeting of Annual Council, held on 23 May 2012, the Committee structure for 2012 / 
2013 was debated.  

 
4.2 The original proposed Committee structure had been voted against by a minority of 

Members and a revised Committee structure was subsequently tabled. This revised 
structure incorporated the Employee Appeals Sub-Committee into the political balance 
arrangements where it had not been previously.  

 

31



4.3 The core membership of the Employee Appeals Sub-Committee is therefore three 
Members; two to be Conservative and one Minority Group Member, in accordance with the 
political balance requirements.  

 
4.2 It was highlighted that Members would be appointed to the Employee Appeals Sub-

Committee at the Employment Committee’s first meeting of the new Municipal Year. 
 
4.4 The Employment Committee must therefore nominate three Members to serve on this Sub-

Committee.  
 
4.5 In addition to those nominated, additional Members may also be called upon from a pool of 

trained members to hear particular cases. This is to ensure that sufficient Members are 
available to hear appeals, that the Members hearing an appeal have received the relevant 
training with regards to the issue in question and that the Members hearing an appeal were 
not involved in the original decision which is in question.  
 

5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1  All Members have been notified, via the Annual Council papers, that Sub-Committee 
Members would be nominated at the first meeting of the Employment Committee. 

 
6.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 
6.1  Three Members, two Conservative and one minority Member, will be nominated to sit on 

the Employee Appeals Sub-Committee.  
 
7.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
7.1 To enable employee dismissal appeals to be conducted in a consistent manner, with 

Members who are knowledgeable and capable.  
 
8.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

8.1  There were no other options considered. If appointments were not made it would be 
unclear which Members should form the Sub-Committee when required. 

 
9.  IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1  If Members were not appointed to the Sub-Committee the process for undertaking 
employee dismissal appeals would be less efficient.  

 
 

  

 

32


	Agenda
	3a 19 January 2012
	3b 26 January 2012
	3c 30 March 2012
	4 Changes to Employee Policies and Procedures
	Youth Worker grades - revised 120312 - Appendix 1
	App 2 Self Disclosure policy
	App 3 Learning and Development Policy ec 310512 V10

	5 Member Appointments to the Employee Appeals Sub-Committee

